
  1 of 7 

 
NORTH TEXAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 
FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN OF 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FOR FY 2022 THROUGH FY 2024 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 

JULY 12, 2021 

 
1. Would it benefit the District for us to include an org chart that is not included in the page 

count for each category to clarify roles/relationships for the resumes provided? 
 

Answer: An org chart or other information the respondents would like to present outside the 

Recent Experience Form and Key Personnel Form is allowed but will be included in the 
page count for that category.     

 
2. On the “Active NTMWD Projects Form,” what do you consider the original engineering fee? 

Some projects have several phases (e.g., a preliminary design contract and a final design 
contract or phases authorized in multiple fiscal years) and others have multiple amendments 
that would lead to an exaggerated % change from the original contract compared to a 
single-phase project.     
 
Answer: The original engineering fee is the amount in the Engineering Services Agreement. 

For projects with multiple phases, the fee for each phase is considered the original 
engineering fee and should be listed separately. 
 

3. Is the Active NTMWD Projects Form included in the page count?    
 

Answer: No. It is stated in Section 5.1 of the RFQ.  

 
4. Are we allowed to recreate the required forms or would NTMWD like us to use the provided 

word format forms? 
 

Answer: Yes, the forms may be recreated with other programs as long as the layout and 
contents are kept the same.  

 
5. If we keep contents the same, can we reformat the key personnel form into our own resume 

template? 
 

Answer: If the Key Personnel Form is recreated, both the contents and the layout should be 

kept the same as the Key Personnel Form provided with the RFQ.  
 
6. Are the references being pulled from the project list or is there a separate reference form? 
 

Answer: There is no separate reference form. The reference contact information is part of 

the Recent Experience Form.  
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7. Is landscape format acceptable? 
 

Answer: Yes, as long as it meets all the format requirements.  

 
8. Is average fee for past year subject to local office supporting SOQ or firm-wide with other 

offices? 
 

Answer: This information in Information Form is for the average revenue of the local office 
only.  

 
9. On the Recent Experience Form, do projects have to be completed, or can we show some 

ongoing projects? 
 

Answer: Ongoing projects may be included.  

 
10. Does list of recent projects with NTMWD also include those that are still in negotiation? 
 

Answer: Only the projects under contract with the District as of the date the SOQ is 
submitted. 

 
11. For geotechnical testing, what other types of tests would be required, apart from densities & 

proctor tests?  
 

Answer: Possible needs may include soil classifications (liquid limit, plastic limit, passing 

No. 200 sieve), in-place nuclear moisture/density, sieve analysis of aggregates. 
 
12. Would testing related to landfill cell construction be under the CQA subcategory or would 

that be encompassed under the solid waste category?  
 

Answer: Testing related to landfill cell construction is usually under the Solid Waste 

category.  
 
13. Is the interview stage done for most projects?  Or is it more of the exception? 
 

Answer: All projects will require consultant interviews. Up to three consultants from the pre-
qualified list will be invited.  

 
14. Is there a minority or HUB requirement for this solicitation? Is there any DBE/MBE/HUB 

goal? 
 

Answer: While we do not have DBE/MBE/WBE in our evaluation criteria, we are looking for 

the most qualified consultants including DBE/MBE/WBE firms who are capable of delivering 
our projects with good quality and high efficiency.  
 
We encourage all the qualified consultants to submit the SOQs. This is not limited to local 
businesses. However, local experience and staffing level is a factor when we evaluate the 
SOQs. 
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15. Is experience with NTMWD included in the scoring criteria under Relevant Project 
Experience? How much influence does Current NTMWD Work have on selection of 
consultants? 

 
Answer: The experience with NTMWD is considered the same as the experience with other 
entities for scoring.  

 
16. Do you have any geographic area limit that determines "local"? 
 

Answer: DFW Metroplex area is generally considered “local”.  

 
17. If we are not a general services firm and only offer specialized services that fall within a 

certain category, would NTMWD still accept our SOQs? For example, cathodic protection 
and corrosion services for Category B and C; odor control services for Categories D and E; 
or condition assessment services that would fall under Categories A through F. Would it be 
better for us to be listed as a sub to other prime consultants? 

 
If we don’t have experience in large diameter water lines >60", largest we have is 54", is it 
still worth submitting in this category? 
 
If we don’t have all disciplines in house, may be HVAC, we can add subconsultant to cover 
that during proposal phase, would that impact our scoring now for pre-qual SOQ? 
 
We are a small firm and provide Geotech and Construction Materials Testing services. Can 
we submit for one or two special categories on this pursuit? 
 
Since NTMWD works with some really large engineering firms and my firm is only 18 
employee, should I even consider submitting an SOQ? 
 
Can we focus on filters only? Or on pipelines only? Although we have experience in all the 
water and wastewater categories, our experience in not on the large scale under which 
NTMWD operates, and therefore, we don’t think we’d be considered.  
 
Answer: This RFQ is for prime consultants only. Our process for soliciting and evaluating 

SOQ’s is administered by the Engineering Department, which is heavily staffed by Texas 
PE’s with varied experience.  The goal of the program is for us to understand capabilities 
and strengths so we can, as near as possible, match design resources to the needs of the 
individual project for the highest benefit to the District. Prospective responders are welcome 
to submit to whatever level they feel competent and effective, within the guidelines of the 
RFQ. 

 
18. Who write the RFQ? Do the department heads have any input on it? Will the department 

heads have any input on the selection of the firms, or will the selection be made by the 
Engineering Department only? Will the same committee that wrote the RFQ be the ones that 
decide who is selected for interviews? 

 
Answer: The RFQ was developed by the Engineering Department, which has principal 

responsibility for oversight and administration of consulting contracts.  Selections for this 
pre-qualification will be based on evaluation by the Engineering staff.  Subsequent selection 
of interviewees for individual projects will also be done by Engineering staff. 
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19. Is there a minimum number of projects we need to have in the project experience form? 
 

Answer: There is no minimum number of projects required in the Recent Experience Form. 

It is the responder’s decision to select a number of representative projects that best 
demonstrate their qualifications.  

 
20. Just to confirm...If a firm currently have a QA Materials Testing contract directly with the 

District, assuming those details/projects need to be shown under Construction Phase area 
on the Project Experience form, correct? 

 
Answer: Yes, that is correct.  

 
21. Can principal and project manager be same individual? 
 

Answer: Yes, there is no restrictions on this.  
 
22. Can you describe the process for deciding which firms to interview from the pre-qualified list 

if you have several options? 
 
Answer: Following internal chartering among key District stakeholders to focus the intended 

scope, Project Managers and first-line managers of the Engineering department collaborate 
to identify proposers with the teams and critical capabilities that appear to align with the 
specific project needs.  As applicable, current/recent experiences and commitments on 
other projects, as well as any distinguishing successes on similar projects, may be 
referenced to validate this alignment. 

 
23. If we have one structural engineer, is it ok to repeat same person for different categories, 

would that impact our scoring? 
 

Answer: The recent projects and key personnel may be repeated in different categories. 

The scoring will be based on the qualifications presented in each category.  
 
 
24. Are we supposed to propose a team for the submitted category? Can a consultant include 

some specialized subs for certain tasks within one category, i.e. pipeline design prime using 
hydraulics modeling specialist  

 
Answer: The purpose of this process is to select pre-qualified consultants for further 
consideration of the individual project needs. The prime consultants are the focus and no 
detailed plan on teaming with sub-consultants is necessary at this time. Therefore, the 
evaluation will be based only on the qualifications of the prime consultants. 
 
The respondents may choose to include the information of the sub-consultants they plan to 
utilize for future projects. However, in order not to complicate this process, the qualifications 
of the sub-consultants will not be reviewed as part of this evaluation.  
 
We recognize that most of the District projects do not cover all aspects of the projects’ 
categories. Therefore, it is not required for the respondents to team up with others to present 
their qualifications in all aspects of each category they choose. The respondents may 
emphasize their strength in certain areas of each category. 
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25. Project Manager and Team Capability (40 percent) is that scoring based only on Key 
personnel experience form? Or is that based on any other information in the SOQ? Does the 
information form get any points? 

 
Answer: While all the forms will be reviewed, the scoring of Project Manager and Team 
Capability will be mainly based on the Key Personnel Form.  

 
26. On the regular categories are there a need for Geotechnical and Construction Materials 

testing services, so we can team with Prime Civil consultants?  
 

If we submit as prime on special category (for Geotech and CMT), can we also team with 
consultants as a sub on other categories? 

 
Answer: This RFQ is for prime consultants only. For future project interviews, if a consultant 

invited to the interview has a need for sub-consultants in specialty categories, it is 
encouraged the firms on the pre-qualified consultant list be utilized as practicable. 

 
27. We want to submit for the “Quality Assurance and Material Testing” category for this 

opportunity. How many firms will be selected for this category? We found that interview up to 
three (3) consultants for each project. Does that mean only three firms may be selected? We 
want to get the clarification to prepare the submittal.  

  
Answer: There is no pre-determined number of firms to be selected for each category, but 

usually more than three. All the SOQs will be thoroughly reviewed and the firms that 
demonstrate high qualifications will be selected for the pre-qualified list. When the District 
starts a project, up to three firms from the pre-qualified consultants list will be invited to an 
interview. The firms invited to the interviews may be different for different projects.  

 
28. We have some questions about the Active NTMWD Projects Form described in Section 

4.2 and the Recent Project Experience Form described in Section 4.3 of the RFQ.  Are we 
allowed to list current and active involvement in NTMWD projects in the role as a 
subconsultant on the Active NTMWD Project Form associated with Section 4.2?  Or, is the 
Active NTMWD Projects Form strictly limited to service as a prime consultant only?  If we 
cannot list current and active NTMWD experience as a subconsultant in the Active NTMWD 
Projects Form, is it appropriate to show this subconsultant experience in the Recent 
Project Experience Form described in Section 4.3 of the RFQ?  Or, is the Recent Project 
Experience Form per Section 4.3 meant for only for projects we have completed for other 
client agencies? 

 
Answer: The Active NTMWD Project Form is for the firms with direct contracts with the 

District, i.e. prime consultants only, not sub-consultants. The Recent Experience Form may 
be used to list the projects as a prime or sub-consultant, with NTMWD or other entities.    

 
29. Under Project Categories – We are an inspection company so we will be choosing Letters L 

and N under Specialty Categories.  Under L -Construction Support we will list our civil 
inspection services.  Under  N - Quality Assurance and Material Testing you list a number of 
items including coating inspection followed by” etc”.   Would Electrical inspection fall in 
this?  Would SCADA also be under this heading? 

 
Answer: The electrical and SCADA inspections are under the Construction Support 

category. 
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30. On the Active NTMWD Project Form you have two phases, Planning and Design and 
Construction Phase.  As an inspection company we do not have anything to put under the 
Planning section.  Can we reduce the number of boxes in that section and increase the 
number of boxes in the Construction Phase so that we can list more of the projects for which 
we provided inspection services?  
 
Answer: Yes, you may increase or decrease the number of rows depending on your need. 

There is no page limit on the Active NTMWD Project Form. 
 

31. On the key personnel form, it asks for cost and completion date, is this information required? 
Scoring is based on skills and capabilities, cost and completion date may not be applicable 
on key personnel form. Some of the projects employees may have worked for other firms, 
the cost and completion date may not be readily available, please let us know if this info is 
not eliminated, if not provided would that impact scoring? 

 
Answer: The intent of the project Brief Description on the Key Personnel Form is to review 

the qualifications of the respondents’ employees compared to the District’s future projects 
with similar size and complexity. The respondents are encouraged to include the best 
available information to demonstrate the qualifications.   

 
32. We will follow the prescribed format for the Key Personnel Form and the Recent Experience 

Form. However, we want to use a slightly different format for about ½ page of the six pages 
allowed for each category to include information on additional personnel and expertise that 
address the District’s requested services. Is this allowable? 

 
Answer: Yes. An org chart or other information the respondents would like to present 

outside the Recent Experience Form and Key Personnel Form is allowed but will be 
included in the page count for that category. 

 
33. Is a Principal-in-Charge required for each category? 
 

Answer: It is not required. However, the respondents are expected to present the 
qualifications of the key personnel that are sufficient to ensure success of the work. 

 
34. In regards to Regular Category i. General Civil and Survey, are we allowed to submit for just 

land surveying services (no engineering) or are we required to submit for all of the services 
under this category? 

 
Answer: It is not required for the respondents to present their qualifications in all aspects of 

each category. The respondents may emphasize their strength in certain areas of each 
category. 

 
35. May we include a header and footer on the form pages? 
 

Answer: Yes.  
 
36. For Divider pages are we allowed to include text to indicate the Work Category?  In section 

5.0 of the RFQ it states that divider pages which provide information with photos, graphics, 
texts, etc. will be counted as pages.  With having to group 4.2 and 4.3 per work category, 
the dividers could be helpful in indicating the different sections. 

 
Answer: Yes, you may include text to indicate the category on divider pages.  
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37. Do we get six pages for Recent experience and six pages for Key Personnel per category? 
 

Answer: The six pages for each category include Recent Experience Form, Key Personnel 

Form and any other information the respondents would like to present outside the two forms.  
 


